Yolo County Health Council

March 10, 2016 Minutes

MICHAEL WILKES, MD, CHAIR

LESLIE HUNTER, VICE-CHAIR

YOLO COUNTY HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY

BAUER BUILDING

137 NORTH COTTONWOOD STREET,

#1600 THOMSON CONFERENCE ROOM

WOODLAND, CA 95695

The Yolo County Health Council met on the 10th Day of March 2016 in the Thomson conference room at the Bauer Building at 137 North Cottonwood Street, Woodland, CA at 9:00 a.m.

VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT: Michael Wilkes, District 2; Carri Ziegler, District 3; Leslie Hunter, District 4; Valerie Olson, District 5;

David Naliboff, At-Large Member; James Zuniga, At-Large Member; John Tan, At-Large Member; Kathleen Middings, MCAH Advisory Board; Jeneba Lahai, Yolo County Children's Alliance; Tawny Yambrovich, Local Mental Health Board; Genevieve Hansen, CommuniCare Health Center;

Tia Will, Kaiser Permanente; Devina Kumar, Northern Valley Indian Health;

Roger Clarkson, Partnership Healthplan of California; Allan Yamashiro, Sutter Health; Chris Kelsch, Winters Health Care;

Kim Deese, Woodland Health Care

VOTING MEMBERS ABSENT: Danny Sandoval, District 1; John Gilbert, ADMH Provider Stakeholder Workgroup;

Dawn Myers Purkey, Commission on Aging & Adult Services; Nathan Trauernicht, EMCC; Gina Daleiden, First 5 Yolo;

STAFF & GUESTS PRESENT: Jan Babb, HHSA Branch Director, Community Health; Patrick Blacklock, CAO; Ron Chapman, Health Officer, HHSA;

Ron Greenwood, Elica Health Centers; Ashley Logins-Miller, Secretary, HHSA; Don Saylor, Supervisor, District 2;

Anna Sutton, HHSA

9:00 A.M. CALL TO ORDER

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS – Michael Wilkes, Chair

The March 10, 2016 Health County meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m., at which time around the table introductions occurred and quorum was confirmed.

- 2. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AGENDA Michael Wilkes, Chair
- 3. APPROVE THE FEBRUARY 11, 2016 MINUTES Michael Wilkes, Chair

Motion: Kim Deese Second: Roger Clarkson Discussion: None Vote: Unanimous

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

Tia Will noted the Davis Vanguard article today that referenced a study out of UCLA, co-authored by Harold Goldstein
regarding alarming rates of diabetes and pre-diabetes. According to the numbers in this study, Yolo County is doing
fairly well, however it would be nice to add blood sugar screening to the blood pressure screenings being offered at the
Public Health Fair in April.

5. STATE AND COUNTY UPDATE - Patrick Blacklock

- The County is in the process of developing the budget for the next fiscal year. Expecting the trends from this year to continue into next year. Budget should be put together by May and will go before the Board of Supervisors in June.
- Board did recently adopt a Strategic Plan for the County, including the area of Thriving Residents. One of the key
 priorities under Thriving Residents is the Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP). Teams are being developed to
 work on each goal and priority area.
- The County is currently working closely with Dignity Health to develop a long-term sustainable plan for Yolo Adult Day Health Center. Dignity Health has expressed concerns about their ability to maintain the current structure. A board subcommittee is currently evaluating other structures used throughout the State, as well as conducting site visits in surrounding counties. There should be a plan before the Board of Supervisors in the next couple months. In the meantime, there is work happening with Dignity Health on an interim plan.

6. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS UPDATE - Supervisor Don Saylor

On Tuesday, the Board of Supervisors considered an interim ordinance on medical marijuana cultivation. The Health Council provided some insight on this a few months ago. This interim ordinance was for outdoor cultivation only, limited to 100 square feet, with buffers from neighboring properties. While reviewing, a member of the public spoke about the need for those with special medical requirements and needs that might not be addressed by that size parcel. A second reading of the interim ordinance will happen at the next meeting to discuss having a waiver for special needs. There may be a request for Health Council to review the special needs request.

- 7. COMMUNITY HEALTH BRANCH REPORT Jan Babb, Community Health Branch Director
 - Jan has requested the Covered CA numbers but they are still unavailable at this time. CMSP enrollment is still a zero.
 - Some discussion regarding the trend of increasing Medi-Cal enrollment.

8. HEALTH OFFICER REPORT - Dr. RON CHAPMAN, HEALTH OFFICER

- Research continues to be done in an effort to better understand the Zika virus. This is not unexpected in the case of an emerging infection. The CDC is doing intensive studies around sexual transmission of Zika. There is growing evidence that it is transmitted sexually but the repercussions of that are still unclear.
- Anna Sutton shared how to access Zika information online. Please go to www.yolohealth.org and click on Zika Information. This page will include information and updates from multiple resources including CDPH.
 - Health Alerts are being sent out to local providers as new information is available. If you are a provider who has not been receiving these Alerts and are interested, please let Anna Sutton know.
 - This website is being updated very regularly. It includes printable information for the public as well as for providers.
 - Staff from the Community Health Branch Infectious Disease team is available during regular work hours and after hours to assist providers.
- Currently, there is no transmission of Zika in the United States via mosquitos, however the same mosquito that carries this disease has been found in certain locations in California; however, there is no evidence that they are carrying the virus. Those in the United States that are infected became infected via travel to high risk areas. There are concerted efforts by mosquito districts to eliminate the Aedes mosquito that have been unsuccessful. There are continued discussions regarding increased funding, more aggressive efforts to eradicate these mosquitoes. California's main mosquito-borne risk continues to be West Nile Virus. Everyone is still strongly encouraged to take efforts to protect against any mosquito bite through appropriate protection and removing breeding grounds for mosquitos.

PRESENTATIONS

9. ADULT AND JUVENILE DETAINEE HEALTH: ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF HHSA — Dr. Ron Chapman & Jan Babb HANDOUTS

PowerPoint: Jail & Juvenile Detention Facility Health & Behavioral Health Services Overview
Detainee Monthly Workload Data – Adult Facilities
Detainee Monthly Workload Data – Juvenile Facilities

- Annually, there is a multi-disciplinary team that performs inspections of the eight detention facilities in Yolo County, which includes holding facilities. If you would be interested to see that annual report, it was brought before the Board of Supervisors on March 8, 2016. Although no major deficiencies were noted in 2015, there were some minor deficiencies specifically around structural issues. These inspections are performed by appointment toward the end of each calendar year by an Environmental Health Specialist, Public Health Nurse, and Registered Dietician; the reports are then reviewed by the Health Officer, CAO and the Board of Supervisors. If there are items that need follow up, the Community Health Branch will follow up with the inspectors for further review and discussion with the chief of that police department or facility.
- Per the current contract, the criteria for Peer Review is any cases referred by Quality Assurance committee, all inmate and ward deaths, all emergent or urgent hospital transfers, referred by health officer, and at least 10 charts each from jail and juvenile hall. In addition, a psychiatrist review is completed on a random pull of charts with a psychiatric diagnosis.
- The primary contract, as well as catastrophic insurance, is paid for by the general fund. Over the last two years, to develop a system for individuals leaving the program to be enrolled in programs they are entitled to, such as Medi-Cal, there are now social services embedded in the facility. Emily Kochly, the jail coordinator, works to align the offender population to their benefits prior to leaving the facility. In addition, individuals who are severely mentally ill are part of the HHSA client caseload. The Public Defender's office also has social workers attached to their office to assist in enrollment of programs.
- Having an appropriate level of mental health staffing time is a challenge that hopefully will be addressed in the new
 RFP. Most of the mental health care while detained is provided by mental health clinicians.

- Yolo County recently received a national grant to attend the Stepping Up conference in DC. This conference will be
 focusing on mental health in detention facilities. Attendees from Yolo County will include representatives from the
 Sheriff's office, HHSA, Probation, and Board of Supervisors.
- Additional topics that may require further discussion:
 - Will the annual inspections shift to unannounced at any point in the future? This discussion has not happened
 at the State level. A large partition of this inspection includes interviews of staff and reviewing policies and
 procedures.
 - What is the process for being evaluated for care?
 - o Is the response time for a sick call evaluated?
 - Is there a formulary for prescribing medications when an inmate comes in already on something?
 - Surprised by low number of STDs in juvenile numbers. What are the protocols on screening? Is it universal screening?
 - o Are there statistics kept on the facilities' employee's health and mental health status?
 - o Cross program facilitation Jail Coordinator role.

10. MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS/SHARING

None at this point.

ADJOURNMENT

Scheduled agenda items for next month

- Yolo Adult Day Health
- Sugar Sweetened Beverages

Future suggested agenda items:

- Migrant health
 - Focus on West Sacramento Middle Eastern immigrants.
- Follow up to jail medical information
- Affordable Housing (Housing being built on Cottonwood what will it include, as well County-wide. Lisa Baker was suggested as the presenter)
- Community Health Improvement Plan

10:21 A.M. ADJOURNMENT

Respectfully submitted by:

Ashley Logins-Miller, Secretary Yolo County Health Council